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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Delhi Duty Free Services Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report including Annexures to
Directors’ Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

r opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
press any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
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one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional ormissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial control refevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 2
going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
induding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individuaily or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)
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Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration (i.e. sitting fees) paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer note 27 to the financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order/ the CARO 2016")
iSSUed by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

" i

Pramod B. Shukia

Partner

(Membership No. 104337)
UDIN: 20104337AAAAAZ201

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19, 2020
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date on the Financial Statements for the
year ended March 31, 2020 of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i)
of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Delhi Duty Free
Services Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial cantrols over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

" el

Pramod B. Shukla

Partner

(Membership No. 104337)
UDIN: 20104337AAAAAZ201

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19, 2020
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ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Reports on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date on the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2020 of Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited)

(1)

(ii

(vi)

(vii)
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In respect of its Property, plant and equipment

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the Property, plant and equipment.

b.  The Property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the
Management in accordance with a reqular programme of verification which, in our
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the Property, plant and equipment
at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

c.  The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold
land and building hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 (“the CARO 2016") is not applicable.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at
reasonable intervals. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventories as
compared to book records were not material and have been properly dealt with in the
books of account.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees
and securities and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. The Company does not
have any unclaimed deposits and accordingly the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, in respect of statutory dues:

a. The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
indluding Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income tax, Customs Duty,
Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it to
the appropriate authorities.

b. There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employee’s
State Insurance, Income tax, Customs Duty, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other
material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020 for a period of more than
\sn( months from the date they became payable.
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c. There are no dues of Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise duty and Value
Added Tax as on March 31, 2020 on account of disputes. Details of dues of Income
tax which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2020 on account of disputes are

given below:

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)
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Name of Nature of | Forum where Period to | Amount | Amount
Statute Dues Dispute is | which the | involved | unpaid r
Pending Amount (Rs. in {Rs. in
| | | Relates | Crores)* | Crores)* |
. Income Tax Income ' Commissioner | FY 2015-16 0.65 0.28
Act, 1961 tax of Income Tax
|  Appeal | N, IR
| Income Tax Dividend Commissioner  FY 2015-16 4.50 4.50 |
' Act, 1961 distribution of Income Tax
_ tax Appeal | I
| Income Tax Dividend | Commissioner  FY 2017-18 0.00 0.00
| Act, 1961 distribution  of Income Tax
. tax_ _ Appeal | —
Income Tax Income Commissioner | FY 2017-18 1.24 1.24
Act, 1961 tax of Income Tax |

Appeal | I I

" * 0.00 implies value less than Rs 100,000

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to bank. The
Company has not taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and
government and not issued any debentures during the year.

The term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for
which they were raised other than temporary deployment pending application of
proceeds. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments).

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration (i.e. sitting fees) in accardance
with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under
clause (xiv) of the CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company.
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(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with him and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies

Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

g by

Pramod B. Shukla

Partner

(Membership No. 104337)
UDIN: 20104337AAAAAZ201

Place: New Delhi
Date: June 19, 2020
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Dalhl Dwty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : USISWDLIESPF IUIYIVSS)
Ralance Sheej g at Mareh 31, 2020
(Amsnal Ia Rupees erore, uslews otherwlse sleled)

i Nates As el At
= March 41,2020 Morch J1. 3019
ASSETS —— —
Non-turrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 997 4157
Canita) work-in-progress 3 L g
Right-of -wse sseets M W4l
Intangible assely 4 8241 160 60
Financial assets
(i) Loans 5A 149.72 139.50
(i) Others - finencial assets B 0.65 01l
Deferred tex sssets (oet) 16 10.26 1é7
Income tax assets (net) 176 an
Other non-current sssets 6 457 1.92
Total non-curren! assets 32097 309.54
Current gasets
Ieventories ] 211.64 196.45
Floancial astets
(i) Loans SA 091 0,92
(i7) Trade recervables .
(i) Cash and cash cquivalents 8 654 200!
(iv) Baak bulance other than (i) sbove A 042 109
(v) Other financisi assets B 116,04 6470
Other carrent assets [3 715 595
Total current sssets 342.70 28912
Tota) asscts m@ 598.66
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 $0.00 8000
Other equity 1] B 288 87 248 89
Total equity 368,87 328.89
Lizbifities
Non-current labBities
Financial liebilies
(i) Borrow:ogs 1" 1647 8.7
@) Kiabil BT 16.36
(i) Ottver (mancial lisbwlities 13 in 1264
Provisions 15 6.68 494
Total nen-cerrent Habilities 434 46.59
Curreat liabilities
Financial lisbilities
(i) Borrowings ] 24.66 66.00
(ii) Trade pevables 1
(2) Totz) outstanding dues of micro and smell 176 264
(b) Total outstanding docs of ereditors other than micro and small 179.27 98.11
(i) lisbiliti 34 6.40
(i) Other finsncial liabilities 13 29.82 4588
Other carremt listalities 1 6.65 740
Provisioss 15 1.02 090
Cunrrent tax lighiliries (net) L9 22
Total current linbilities 251,37 22308
Tots] equity snd labilities __ 663,67 $98.86
s f signific ot pecpuntiog pollcies 22 e
See eccompanying Aotes ﬁuiumdur‘nmi-_lsm
As per our repart of even daic struched
For Deloitte Haskins & Sefls LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Acconntamts Deihi Duty Free Services Private Limited
Pramed B. Shukla rectar Director i
Partner kins \:\ Dm-fiéq’)ss'% DIN “01‘0'171‘75
sty NN Place: New Dethi Place: New Dethi
< N\ Date; 19.06.2020 Date: 19.06.2020
®\\
f.’ Chartered \1 =1
| Accountants | @ ||
[e] Vi)
s S/ i
Q b b // Sccretary
- " Place; New Delii
S S ¥* - Date: 19 06.2020
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DL2009PTC191963)

Staterment of Profit and Loas for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amownl ia Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
INCOME
L. Revenue from operations 17 141459 135830
L Other income 18 1941 4495
I, Total Income (1 + 1T 143400 10325
EXPENSES
Purchases of stock-in-trade 518.49 54023
Changes in inventones of stock-in-trade 19 (15.19) (64 99)
Employe benefits expense 20 4922 3715
Deprecistion and amortization expense 21 36.79 2491
Finance costs 1 9.83 932
Other expenses 23 644,84 61909
IV. Total expenses 123798 1,165.80
V. Profit before tax (ITI-TV) 196.02 23745
VL Teax expense:
Current Tax 16 531 8545
Deferred Tax 16 155 ©93)
VIL Profit for the year (V-VT) 14136 15200
VIl Other compreheasive income (OCT)
A Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (0.54) 027)
Tmcomc tax relating to items thet will not be reclassified to profit and
loss 0.14 009
Tetal other comprehensive income (0.40) (0.18)
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 140.96 151.88
Eamings per share (face value Rs. 10 per share): 4
(1) Basic(inRs.) 1767 19.00
(2) Diluted (in Rs.) 17.67 1900
Semwmary ol significant accounting policies zi
See accompanying notes forming part of the Financial Statemenis
As per our report of even date stiached
For Delolrte Faskins & Sefls LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountsats Yelhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
b W
tar Director s
s DIN ~ 0£95552 6 pIN - 63017755
ckins NN Place: New Delln Place: New Drethi
22 ~F N\ Date: 19.06.2020 Date: 19.06.2020
\ b
I, b= \Accountanls ) n =l
\“\ 2X I~ . -
N\ \ é/\ Chief :Iueull (|:‘| l: “g::h.imm Complany Secretary
i N\ / Place: New noe: New Place: New Delhi
;‘::,m.m \O\\ * 7 Date: 19.06.20 Date: 19.062020  Dae: 19.06.2020




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DLID0IFTCI91963)
Statement of Cash Flows for (he yesr eaded March 31, 2020
(Amoun! In Rupess erore, ooless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For fhe year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
A Cusb flaw from operating activities
Profit before (ax 196 62 2)748
Adjuitmeat 1o reeoncile profit before tax (o pel cash Nows
Depreciation ond emortisation expense 3679 2491
Net gain on sale of Propeny, Plant ond Equipment oon 0062y
Unwinding of d on sccurity deposits given 1528 131
Foreign ¥ trasshation reserve adj 067 (613)
Ietevest income (099) @m
Finance costs 28) 932
+ Provision for bed swd doubtful receivables (net) (002) 044
Lease Asbiliry writien back [ -
Provision for stock loss 0,62 038
o] 3990
Operating profit before workimg capilal changes 25741 27734
Meovement: is working capiral:
(Increase) s imventories (1581) (65219)
™ i [ T —— (8020) (43 22)
M 3 in Wrade payables and oiher fascialinon-finasolal fabdi 78 40 (721)
Increase in provisions 148 097
(17 13) (11475)
Cash gracratrd from oporation: 139.89 162.60
Less: Direct lax paid (net of refuads) (54.75) {B6.06)
Net cash flow from opernting activitics (A) 185.14 76.54
§  Cash flow from lovesting activifies:
Capital expeaditure on property, plant and equip (afler adj of i in capital work-in-
progress and for capits] expendi (1021) 2543)
Proceeds from sele of property, plant end equipreent 007 002
Imerest received I8 269
Baak bal cluding ) not 25 cash end cash equivalent (net) 01s 185
Met cash Row used in investing activities (B) _(8:80) (20.87)
C  Netcesh flaw from fiasecing sctivitier.
Fumnce costs paid (7) o)
Interim devdond pacd on equity dhares (including 12x on dividend) (86 £0) (62 69)
Frral drmidend paid on ety shaves (inckading s on dividend) (1929) 2411
Repayment of ease bability (696)
Repaymeni of long lerm borowangs (33 13) (48 36)
Proceeds from long term bomowings 749 2817
Na d ) i shor e b £ (4114 5209
Net cast Bow ssed in in fimancing srtivities (C) [CX 1] (63.91)
Net (decresse ) / lncrease in cash and cath equivalents (A+ B +C) (1347) ®24)
Cash and cash equivzlems 2 beginning of (he year 2000 2825
Cash and cesh equivalents at end of the year _6.54 2001
Asat As at
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS March 31, 1020 March 31, 2019
Balances with banks®
- in current accounts 150 66l
- in EEFC scoounts 307 605
Cash in hand 1 87 735
Total cash prd 33k equivalents 654 2001

Note:
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Delhl Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(A tIn R crore, otherwlise stated)

Corporate Information

Delhl Duty Free Services Private Limited (“the Company”) 15 a privale limited company domiciled in India and (s Incorporated under the pro of the Comp Act applicable in
india. Tha Company is & joint bet Delhi International Alrport Limited, Yaldrvin Limited and GMR Alrports Limited and is primsrily engaged in the business of operating duty

free shops at international airpart in Delhi. The Company was awarded the licence to manage and operate the Duty Free Shops at Terminal 3, Indira G;_ndhn Imarnatianal Alrport in Delh)
by Delhl International Airport Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at Bullding No. 301, Ground Floor, Opp. Terminal-3, Indira Gandhi International Alrpart, New Delhj
110037.

The Financial Statements were approved for issue by the Company's board of directors on June 19, 2020.

Sianificant accounting policies

Basls of preparation

(1) The Financlal Statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with the Indian Accaunting Standards (Ind AS) prestribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and nther accaunting principies generally accepted in India. The accounting policies followead In praparation of the
Financial Statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 except IND AS 116 "Leases” which is effective for
the Company with effect from April 1, 2019.

(ii) The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain instruments that have been measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period. (as
explained in accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

(iii) The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (“INR”) and all the values are rounded to the nearest Crore (INR 00,00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreclation/amortization and impairment loss, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that Is directly
attributable to the acqulsition of the items.

Capital work In progress Includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/under development as at the bafance sheet date.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrylng amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the Item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured rellably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a seperate assets are derecognised when

replaced. Further, when each major Inspection Is performed, its cost Is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied, All other repalrs and maintenance are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period In which they are incurred.

An Item of property, plant and equlpment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from Its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is Included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation/amortization of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreclation/Amortization on Property, plant and equipment

(i) Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on a pro-rata basis to the period of use under the stralght line method over the estimated useful lives of each

asset as determined by the management. In accordance with Part A of Schedule 11 of the Companles Act, 2013, in respect of following assets , the company, based on technical
evaluation, believes that the useful life of such assets is different from the useful life specified in Schedule 11 to The Companies Act 2013 and adopted the useful life of such assets
accordingly.

Categories Useful Life (SLM) Useful life as per Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013

Office equipment 3 years 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years 10 years

Plant and machinery 5 years 15 years

Vehicles 5 years 8 years

Server 3 years 6 years

Computers 3 years 3 years

(Il) Leasehold Improvements are amortised over the primary period of the lease or economic useful life of 10 years, whichever Is lower.
(iii) Assets costing individually Rs. 5,000 or less are depreciated fully in the period of capitalization.
Intanglble assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initlal recognition at cost.

Following Initial recognition, Intanglble assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated Impalrment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitallsed development costs, are not capltalised and the related expenditure Is reflected in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure Is
Incurred.

License represents right to run and operate duty free shops and represents time value of securlty deposit amount pald to Delhl International Alrport Limited In accordance with terms
of concesslon arrangement.

Amortization of Intanglibles - Intanglble assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carrled at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated Impairment
losses, If any, Amortisation Is recognised on a stralght-line basls over thelr estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting perlod, with the effect of any changes in estimate belng accounted for on a prospective basls. Intangible assets with Indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less accumulated Impalrment losses, If any.

Computer Software are amortised on stralght line basls over the estimated useful life of 3 years.
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Deihl Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)

— Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

d)

e)

f)

9)

h)

Inventory

Stock-in-trade - Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost (other than Goods-in-transit) is determined on a moving weighted average basis and
includes all applicable costs incurred in bringing goods to their present location and condition.

BorrowlIng cost

Borrowlng costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Impairment of non-financlal assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the company estimates the assel’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash generating units’ (CGUs) net selling price and
its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an Individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash Inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered Impaired and is written down to Its recoverable
amount.

For assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an Indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A prevlously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a
change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation/amortisation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Provlisions, Contingent llabliitles, Contingent asset and CommIitments

provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision
to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the relmbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the p of time is recognised as a finance cost.”

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

« A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will not be required to settle the obligation
« A present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible

» A possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outfow of resources is remote

Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. A contingent asset is
disclosed where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets

Provislons, contingent liabillties, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable/avallable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus
etc.,are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund are defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable.

The Company recognizes contribution payable as expenditure, when an employee renders the related service, If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before
the reporting date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme Is recognized as a llability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contributlon due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example. a reductlon in future payment or a cash refund.
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The cost of praviding benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined usng the projected umit credit method with actuanial valuations baing carried out at each balance sheet
date, which recognised each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employes benefit enk i nt and each unit sep Iy ti build up the final obligation,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. Past service costs are recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss on the earlier of:

i) The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

i) The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:
i) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
li) Net interest expense or Income

i) Long term employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period In which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a
liability at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made in respect of services rendered by employees at the balance sheet date.

1)  Financlal Instruments

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financlal assets
Initlal recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at falr value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at falr value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to

the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

ement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in:
a. Debt instruments at amortised cost
b. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Debt Instruments at amortised cost:

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method.

Amortised cost Is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables. For more information on receivables, refer to Note 58.

Debt instrument at FVTPL: FVTPL Is a residual category for debt Instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, Is classified as at FVTPL.

[n addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwlse meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognitlon inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL, Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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perecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet)
when:

a. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or X

b. The company has transferred its rights to recelve cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and eithar (&) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} the company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assat, but has transferred control of the asset.

when the campany has transferred its rights to recaiva cash fiows from an assel or has entered into a pass-through sfréfifemnent, it evaluates il and to what @x1ent it has rétdined
the risks and rewards of ownership, Whan It has neither tr 1 ner retal k lly all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred cantrol of the sssel, the
campany continues Lo recognise the transferred asset to Lhe extent of the company’s continying involvement. In that £ase, the company also reCagiiis#s an ass0liated liability. The
\ransferred asset and the associated liability are measured on @ basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financlal assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits.
b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18,
c) Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables. The application of simplified approach
does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial

recognition.
For recognition of impairment less on other financial assets and risk exposure, the pany determines thal whether there has bean 3 significant increase in the redit risk since
initial recognition. If credit risk has not Increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used ta provid for imp lpss. . if eredit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is

used. 1f, in @ subsequant peried, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is na lenger a significant Increase credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime
ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

a) All contractual terms of the financial Instrument (including prepayment, extension, cali and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument
b) Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit & Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, ie., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of
facilitating an analysis that Is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

FInanclal llabllitles

Initlal recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial llabilities at falr value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financlal liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings Including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial
instruments.

q ement

The measurement of financial liabllities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financlal llabllitles at falr value through profit or loss

Financlal liabllities at falr value through profit or loss include financial liabilitles held for trading and financial liabllities designated upon initlal recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial llabilitles are classifled as held for trading if they &re incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This categary also includes derivative financial Instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Sep d embadded d ives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effectlve hedging instruments. Galns or lesses on liabilities held for trading are recognlised in the profit or loss.

Financial llabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initla} date of recognition, and enly if the criteria in Ind AS 109
are satisfied. For fiabilities desighated as FVTPL, Fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL, These gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to Statement af Prafit and Loss. Howewver, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All ather changas In fair value of such liability are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Loans and borrowlings

This is the category most relevant to the company, After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 11.




Delhl Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)

Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

k)

m)

n)

o)

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the fiability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclasslfication of financlal assets
The company determines classification of financial assets and liabllities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financlal assets which are equity

instruments and financial liabilities. For financtal assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification 15 made only if there is a change in the busi maodal for 1 ging those
assets, Changes to the business model are expected to ba The company's senior o determines change in the busingss madel 85 & result of external or
internal changes whith are significant to the company's op Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business modet accurs when the company either

begins or ceases to perform an activity that 15 significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the
reclassification date which Is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised
gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financlal Instruments
Financial assets and financial llabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derlvative financlal Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and cross currency swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recongnised in OCI and later reclassified to profit & loss when the hedge
item effect profit or loss.

Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby Profit/(loss) before tax reported under Statement of Profit and loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated
based on available information.

Forelgn currency

The Financial Statements are presented in INR, and the functional currency of the Company is INR (Functional currency of the Company is USD till March 31, 2018).

Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss with the exception of the following:

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on transfation of

non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss Is recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss are also recognised in OCI or Statement of Profit and Loss, respectively).

Falr value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at falr value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market partiopants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or Indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised In the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professlonal standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements In the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company's
accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

The Company, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change Is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for falr value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
a) Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 25)

b) Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 29)

¢} Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 28)

p) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s activities as described below.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods at the duty free outlets operated by the Company is recognised at the time of delivery of goods to customers which coincides with transfer of risks
and reward. Sales are stated net of returns and discounts.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

-The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of goods;

-The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
-The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

-It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transactlon will flow to the Company; and

-The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the customer, which colncides with the point of
delivery of the goods to the customer.

Interest Income
For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR)

Rental Income
Visibility charges has been recognised as per the terms of the contract with the customer.

g) Taxes on Income

Current Income tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorlties In accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax ltems are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
sltuations in which applicable tax reaulations are subiect to interpretation and establishes provisions where aporooriate.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

Deferred tax X

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilitles are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax asset_s are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realised or the fiability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset If a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Segment Information

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is operation of duty free outlets at Delhi International Airport and operates in a single business segment.
Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the Financial Statements relate to the Company’s single business segment.

Leases

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” applied to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method along with
transition option to recognise Right of use assets (RoU) at an amount equal to the lease liability. Accordingly comparatives for previous year ended March 31, 2019 have not been
retrospectively adjusted. .

A contract Is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company Is the lessee

The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated
impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right- of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date on a stralght-line basis over
the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. 1f that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For
leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company may adopt the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole, The lease payments shall include
fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by
increasing the carrylng amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re- measurement of lease llability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Where the Comoanv is the Lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recorded as receivables at the Company net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under
operating leases are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Assets and liabilities are classified as current if it Is expected to realise or settle within 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress
The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Leasehold

Particulars Plant & equipment Furniture & fixtures Computers Office equipment Vehicles Total
improvements
Gross carrying value ag at April 1, 2019 32.95 14.38 12.81 4.23 0.49 030 65.16
Additions 932 188 719 062 002 - 19.03
Deletions (0.07) (1:69) - (032 {0.03) - (5.11)
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2020 42.20 11.57 20,00 __4.83 .48 0.30 79.08
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2019 6.50 9.54 2.54 3.53 0.38 0.10 22.59
Depreciation 6.13 1.59 322 0.51 0.06 0.06 11.57
Accumulated depreciation on deletions (0 02) (4.68) - (0,30 (0.03) - (5.05)
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2020 12.61 6,45 5.76 By ] 0.41 0.16 29.11
Carrying value as at March 31, 2020 29.59 5.12 14.24 0.81 0.07 0.14 49.97
Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 26.45 4.84 10.27 0.70 0.11 0.20 42.57
The changes in the carrying value of property, plant and equipment for the year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows:
Particulars Leaselio’d Plant & equipment Furniture & fixtures Computers Office equipment Vehicles Total
l‘ll'l]!tﬂ‘ﬂﬂﬂlﬂ
Gross carrying value as at April 01, 2018 3881 11.14 22.05 3.60 0.54 0.30 76.44
Additions 19.49 353 8.68 063 0.06 - 32.39
Deletions (25.35) (0.29) (17.92) (0,00 (1 - (4367
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2019 32.95 14.38 12,81 4.23 0.49 0.30 65.16
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1,2018 28.28 8.90 1858 287 043 0.04 5010
Depreciation 3.57 0.93 188 0.66 0,06 0.06 7.16
Accumulated depreciation on deletions (25.35) (0.29) (17.92) (0,0 0.1 - (1367
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2019 6.50 9.54 2.54 3.53 0.38 0.10 22.59
Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 26.45 4.84 10.27 0.70 0.11 0.20 42.57
Carrying value as at March 31, 2018 10.53 224 3.47 0.73 0.11 0.26 17.34
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2020 2019
Capital work in progress 1.22 13.04

Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2020 comprises expenditure for the lease hold improvements in the course of construction.
For details of Property, plant and equipment pledged as security for borrowing - Refer Note 11




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

4. Intangible assets

The changes in the carrying value of intangibles for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Computer Software Licenses** T
i tal
Particulars (Acquired) ota
Gross carrying value as at April 1,2019 4.37 260.85 265.22
Additions 0.35 - 0.35
Deletions % . -
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2020 4.72 260.85 265.57
Accumulated amortization as at April 1, 2019 3.49 161.73 165.22
Amortization 0.57 17.37 17.94
Accumulated amortization on deletions - - -
Accumulated amortization as at March 31, 2020 4.06 179.10 183.16
Carrying value as at March 31, 2020 0.66 81.75 82.41
Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 0.88 99.12 100.00
The changes in the carrying value of intangibles for the year ended March 31, 2019 are as follows:
Particulars Computer Software Licenses**
Total

(Acguired)
Gross carrying value as at April 01, 2018 3.95 260.85 264.80
Additions 0.42 - 0.42
Deletions - - -
Gross carrying value as at March 31,2019 4.37 260.85 265.22
Accumulated amortization as at April 1, 2018 3.08 144.39 147.47
Amortization 041 17.34 17.75
Accumulated amortization on deletions - - -
Accumulated amortization as at March 31, 2019 3.49 161.73 165.22
Carrying value as at March 31, 2019 0.88 99.12 100.00
Carrying value as at March 31,2018 0.87 116.46 117.33

**Licenses represents right to run and operate duty free shops (Also refer Note 1). The remaining amortization period is 5 years 4 months (as at March

31, 2019 - 6 years 4 months)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

5. Financial assets

SA. Loans
Nen current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits
- To related parties 143.07 128.40 0.42 0.42
- To other parties 6.65 11.10 0.49 0.50
Total 149.72 139.50 091 0.92
SB. Other financial assets
Non current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Carried at amortised cost
Unsecured
Considered good
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money against bank guarantees 061 012 - -
Interest accrued but not due on bank deposits 0.04 0.01 0.02 025
Credit card collections in hand - - 0.01 363
Amounts recoverable from related parties - 37.01 0.38
Amount recoverable towards rebate, promotion, etc. - - 79 00 60 44
Considered doubtful
Amount recoverable towards rebate, promotion, etc - - 1.19 1.2}
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful receivables - - (119 (1.21)
Total other financial assets 0.65 0.13 116.04 64.70
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful receivables (expected credit loss allowance)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1,2019 (1.21)
Add : Created during the year -
Less : Released during the year (0.02)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (1.19)
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1,2018 (1.20)
Add : Created during the year (0.01)
Less : Released during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2019 (1.21)
6. Other assets
Non current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Capital advances 0.09 014 - -
(A) 0.09 0.14 = >
Others
Advance to suppliers - . 1.52 1.51
Prepaid expenses and leases 3.55 0.85 3.03 1.82
Balance with government authorities
Considered good 0.93 0.93 2,60 262
Considered doubtful 0.43 0.43 -
Less: Provison for doubtful receivables (0.43) (0.43) - -
(B) 4.48 1,78 17.15 5.95
Total 4.87 1.92 7.15 5,95




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

7. Inventories

As at
March 31, 2020
(Valued at cost or NRYV, whichever is lower)
Stock in trade - traded goods [including goods in transit 211.64
Rs. 23.87 crores (March 31, 2019 Rs. 8.94 crores)] :
Total 211,64

Notes:

7.1: The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year - Rs. 503.30 crore (year ended March 31, 2019: Rs. 475.33 crore)

As at

March 31,2019

196.45

-

—l06,45

7.2: The cost of Inventories recognized as an expense includes Rs. 0.62 crore (March 31, 2019: Rs. 0.38 crore) towards provision for slow/ non-moving items during year

7.3: The above inventories have been pledged as security for borrowings (Refer Note 11).

8. Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balances with Banks
-in current accounts 1.60 6.61
-in EEFC accounts 3.07 6.05
Cash on hand 1.87 7.35
Total 6.54 20.01
8A. Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money
. . 0.42 1.09
against bank guarantees and buyer's credit
Total 0.42 n==+09
8B. Reconcilation of liabilities arising from financing activities during the year ended March 31, 2020.
. . Cash flow during the year As at March 31,
Particulars As at April 1, 2019 = Payment Net Cnah Flow 2020
Long Term Borrawings - Term Loans (including current 66.95 7.49 (33.18) (25.69) 41.26
maturities of long-term borrowings)
Short-term borowings 66.00 - (41.34) (41.34) 24.66
Total 132,95 7.49 (74.52) (67.03) 65.92
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Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

10, Other equity

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
General Reserve .98 9.98
Foreign currency translation reserve (4.58) (4.58)
Hedge reserve 9.34 423
Retained earnings 274.13 239.26
Total 288.87 248.89
Particulars Axat gsat
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019
10.1 General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 9.98 9.98
Changes during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 9.98 9,98
10.2 Foreign currency translation reserve [Refer note 2.2(n)|
(4.58) (4.58)
Changes during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year (4.58) (4.58)
10.3 Hedge reserve |Refer note 2.2(k)|
Balance at the beginning of the year 423 -
Changes during the year 511 423
Balance at the end of the year 9.34 4.23
10.4 Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 23926 178 30
Add: Net profit for the year 141.36 152.03
Less . Payment of dividends and tax thereon
Final dividend on equity shares for the year ended on March 31, 2018 (Rs. 2.50 per share) . (20.00)
Final dividend on equity shares for the year ended on March 31, 2019 (Rs. 2.00 per share) (16 00) -
Taxes on final dividends @ 20.5553% (previous year @ 20.5553%) (3.29) 4.11)
Interim dividend - Rs 9.00 per share (previous year Rs. 6.50 per share) (72 00) (52.00)
Taxes on interim dividends @ 20.5553% (previous year @ 20.5553%) (14.80) (10.69)
Reversal of deferred tax on MTM loss on recognition of hedge, created on transaction - (4.09)
274.53 239.44
Other items of comprehensive income (OCI)
Other comprehensive income arising from re-measurement of defined benefit obligations net of (0 40) 0.18)
income tax
Total retained earnings 274,13 239.26
Total (10.1 + 10.2 + 10.3+10.4) 288.87 248.89

Note :

- General reserve is created from time to time by way of transfer of profits from the retained earnings. General reserve is created by transfer of one component of equity to another and

is not an item of other comprehensive income

_Retained Earnings: Retained eamnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

11. Financial liabilities - Borrowings

Non - Current

As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Secured
From banks:
Term loans (Refer Notes (i) & (ii) below) 41.26 66.95
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings 24.79 38.24
16.47 28.71
Short term borrowings
- Buyers credit (Refer Notes (i) & (iv) below) - -
Loan repayable on demand (Refer Notes (i) & (iii) below) - =
Total 16.47 2871

(i) The borrowings are secured by:

Current

As at
March 31, 2020

As at

March 31, 2019

0.67 0.62
23.99 65.38
24.66 66.00
24.66 66.00

- First charge by way of hypothecation of the Company's stock in trade and other movables including book-debts, bills whether documentary or clean, outstanding monies, receivables,

both present and future.
- First charge on movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future.
- Escrow agreement with the bank and the Company for first and exclusive charge on receivable.

(ii) Terms of repayment of secured loans
Term Loan It

I As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Quarter endin; . Total amount of No. of . Total amount of
i No. of Quarters Quarterly installments Instaliments _ Quarters Quarterly installments Yatiaetith
December 2020 1 2.40 2.40 1 2.40 2.40
December 2019 — September 2020 2 6.00 12.00 3 6.00 18.00
June 2019 - September 2019 - - - 2 9.00 18.00
Total 14.40 38.40

Present rate of interest is in the range of 8.55% to 8.70% p.a




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Term Loan IIL, IV and V :

I_ As at March 31, 2020 I As at March 31, 2019 ]
Quarter ending No. of Quarters Quarterly installments Toml:::nﬁ:::n(:: !JI::;_::L Quarterly installments TOt‘;:I:QI:“m“';(::
March 2023 1 0.41 0.41
December 2022 | 0.41 0.41 1 0.35 035
September 2022 I 2.60 2.60 1 0.39 039
June 2022 1 2.59 2.59 1 2.17 2.17
March 2022 I 2.63 2.63 1 2.16 2.16
December 2021 | 2.63 263 1 2.20 2.20
June 2021 — September 2021 2 2.60 5.19 2 2.17 434
March 2021 1 2.60 2.60 1 2.20 220
September 2019 - December 2020 3 260 7.80 6 2.17 1301
Margh 2019 - June 2019 2 3 1 1.73 LT3

Total 26,86 28.55
The present inferesl rate for Term Loan I1I, IV and V for INR loan is in the range of 8 20% to 8 80%pa

(iii) The present rate of interest on cash credit (INR) is 8.40% p.a.
(iv) The present interest rates on buyer's credit are in the range 0f 2.21% to 3.80% p.a.

12. Financial liabilities - Trade payables

As at As at
Muarch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Total outstanding due to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 32) 1.76 2.64
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises* 179.27 98.11
Total 181.03 100,75

*Includes amount due to related parties Rs. 30.63 crore (Previous year 20.16 crore)
Credit period varies as per the contractual terms of various suppliers/ vendors. The Company has appropriate policy in place to ensure that all dues are paid within the credit terms
agreed with the parties

13. Other financial liabilities

Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
Derivative contracts 3.92 12.94 -
392 12.94 -

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Current maturities of long term borrowings - - 24.79 38.24
(Refer Note 11)
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - - 045 0.36
Payables towards property, plant and equipment & intangibles*# - - 4.58 7.28
Total other financial liabilities at amortised cost - - 19.82 45.88

Total 3.92 12.94 29.82 45.88

* Includes amount due to related parties Rs. NIL crore (Previous year Rs. 0.22 crore)
# Includes total outstandidng micro and small enterprises Rs. 0.37 crore (Previous year Rs. 1.21 crore) (Refer note 32)




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

14. Other liabilities
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Advances from customers - - 0.39 2.28
Statutory dues - - 6.26 512
Total - - 6.65 7.40
15. Provisions
Non Current Current
As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 2.17 1.69 0.39 0.37
Provision for gratuity 4.51 3.25 0.63 0.53
Total 6.68 4.94 1.02 0.90




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

16. Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the year
Statement of Profit and Loss:

for the year ended

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expenses reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss
0ocCl
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Tax charged to OCI

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2020:

for the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
5311 8545
1.55 (0.03)
54,66 85.42
0.14 0.09
0.14 0.09
—

for the year ended

for the year ended

Accounting profit before tax
At applicable income tax rate of 25.168% (previous year 34.944%)

Tax effect of expenses / (incame) that are not dedugtible in determining taxable pofit

Unwinding of discount on security deposits for licenses (net)

Donation

Effect of change in tax rate from 34,944% to 25.168% (Refer Footnote)
Others

Tax expense as per Statement of Profit and Loss

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
196.02 23745
49.34 8298
0.69 0.13
0.96 055
3.26 -
041 .76
54.66 85.42

Foootnote:-The Company elected to exercise the option permitted under section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act 1961 as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendinent) Ordinance, 2019 Accordingly, the
Company tecognized Provision for Income Tax and resmensured its Deferred Tax Assets basis the rate prescribed in the said section and impact of the same was recognised in the year ended March 31,
2020, The Campany hs alse recognised provision for Incame Tax and Deferred Tax Assets for the year ended March 31, 2020 basis the rate prescribed in the said section

Deferred tax on timing differences as on March 31, 2020 is calculated at 25.168%

Deferred tax:

Opening Bal R d in Statement Recognised  Recognised in Equity Closing balance
(As at of Profit and Loss (As at March 31, 2020)
April 01, 2019)
Deferred tax liability
- Impact of amortization of processing fees paid for the term loan using EIR 001 (0.01) - E 0.00
method over the following years
001 (.01 - - 0.00

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
- Property plant and Equipment: Impact of differences between tax depreciation 7.08 (1.26) - 582
and depreciation/amortization charged in the financial statements
- MTM Loss 0.14 (0.14) - -
- Provision for stock loss 049 0.02 - 0.51
- Provision for employee benefits 2.04 (0.24) 0.14 1.94
- Provision for custom duty payable 136 (0.36) - 0.99
- Allowance for bad and doubtful receivables 0.57 {0.16) - 041
- Impact of lease liability - 0.59 - 0.59

11.68 (1.55) 0.14 - 10.26
Net deferred tax asset 11.67 (1.55) 0.14 - 10.26
Reconciliations of deferred tax liabilities/assets (net)

for the year ended for the year ended
March 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2019

Opening balance 11.67 15.70
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (155) (0.03)
Tax expense during the year recognised in Equity 000 (4.09)
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognised in OCI 014 0.09
Closing balance 10.26 11,67
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17. Revenue from operations

for the year ended

for the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue from operations
Sale of products - traded goods 1,414.59 1,358.30
Total 1,414.59 1,358.30

18. Other income

for the year ended

for the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated at fair value through profit or
loss:
- Interest on Bank deposits 0.11 0.03
- Interest on coupon received from bank 0.88 2.10
- Unwinding of discounts on security deposits given 15.28 13.13
- Lease liability written back (Refer note 34) 1.17 -
- Refund of service tax pertaining to earlier years (refer note 27)* - 27.84
Other non-operating income
- Visibility charges 1.94 1.83
- Provision for doubtful debts written back 0.02 -
- Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.01 0.02
Total 19.41 44.95

19. Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

for the year ended
March 31, 2019

Closing stock

- Stock in trade - traded goods 21164 196 45
211.64 196.45
Less :
Opening stock
- Stock in trade - traded goods 196.45 131.55
196.45 131.55
(Increase) / decrease (15.19) (64.90)

- Stock in trade - traded goods
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20. Employee benefits expenses*

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

for the year ended
March 31, 2019

Salaries, wages and bonus (including deputed staff cost) 37.36 3217
Contribution to provident and other funds 337 2.73
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 26(b)) 1.11 0.86
Staff welfare expenses 138 1.39
Total 43.22 37.15
*Net of recoveries
21. Depreciation and amortization expense
for the year ended for the year ended
Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 3) 11.57 7.16
Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 4) 17.94 17.75
Amortization of Right of use assets (Refer Note 34) 7.28 -
Total 36.79 24.91

22, Finance costs

for the year ended
March 31, 2020

for the year ended
March 31, 2019

Interest expense for financial liabilities not classified at FVTPL 7.22 883
Interest on lease liablity 213 -
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues 0.17 009
Other borrowing costs (guarantee charges, etc.) 0.31 040
Total 9.83 9.32
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23. Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Rent 2.46 2.29
Insurance 1.79 1.21
Repairs and maintenance
-Computers 2.59 2.09
-Others 1.14 0.80
Electricity, Fuel and water charges (net of recovery) 4.12 3.04
Advertising and sales promotion 5.41 6.34
Legal and Professional Fees 22.49 10.84
Travelling and conveyance 1.57 0.88
Payment to auditors (Refer Note (i) below) 0.35 0.29
Contribution towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) (Refer Note 33) 3.82 3.14
Marketing fees 16.80 16.20
Concession fees 525.69 514.18
Airport service charges 7.56 7.09
Commission on collections 10.98 11.4]
Warehouse and transportation 12.06 11.78
Packing charges 4.59 4.45
Detention charges 0.04 0.03
Exchange differences (net) 14.73 16.23
Provision for bad and doubtful receivables - 0.44
Director's sitting fee 0.17 0.19
Miscellaneous expenses 6.48 6.17
Total 644.84 619.09
Note (i)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Payment to Auditors (including GST) #:
For Audit fee 0.15 0.15
For Taxation matters 0.07 .
For other services 0.11 0.11
For reimbursment of expense 0,02 0.03
Total 0.35 0.29

# net of fee amount reimbursed /reimbursable by GMR Airports Limited towards their IPO/ bond related activites Rs. 0.16 crore, (previous year March 31,

2019 Rs. 1.01 crore)

24, Earnings Per Share (EPS)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (Rs. in crores) 141.36 152.03
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing Earning Per Share 80,000,000 80,000,000
(Basic)
Earning Per Share (Basic) (in Rs.) 17.67 19.00
Earning Per Share (Diluted) (in Rs.) 17.67 19.00
Face value per share (in Rs.) 10 10
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25. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statement requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities and assets.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and Assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the Financial Statement was prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
See Note 29 for further disclosures.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting year. There was no
change in the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as compared to year ended March 31, 2019.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):

The Company has considered the internal and external sources of information and economic forecast, up to the date of approval of these financial
statements, in determining the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on various elements of its business operations and financial statements. The Company has
used the principles of prudence in applying the judgements, estimates and assumptions and based on current estimates, the Company expects to recover
the carrying value of its current and non-current assets. The management has made initial assessment of likely adverse effect impact on business and
financial risks, and believes that the impact is likely to be short term in nature. The management does not see any medium and long term risks in the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liability as and when they fall due. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's
financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements depending on how long the pandemic lasts and
time period taken for the economic activities to return to normalcy.

Leases

Effective April 01, 2019, the Company adopted the new lease standard (Ind AS 116) using the modified retrospective method applied to lease
arrangements that were in place on the transition date. Ind AS 116 requires the Company to recognize a right-of-use lease asset and lease liability for
operating and finance leases. The right-of-use asset is measured as the sum of the lease liability, prepaid or accrued lease payments, any initial direct costs
incurred and any other applicable amounts.

The identification and calculation of the lease liability requires the Company to make certain assumptions for each lease, including identification of asset,
substantive right of substitution, right to obtain economic benefits from use, lease term and discount rate implicit in each lease, which could significantly
impact the gross lease liability, the duration and the present value of the lease liability. When calculating the lease term, the Company considers the
renewal, cancellation and termination rights available to the Company and the lessor. The Company determines the discount rate by calculating the
incremental borrowing rate on a collateralized basis at the commencement of a lease or upon a change in the lease term.
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26. Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans

a) Defined Contribution plans

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions which are defined contribution plans, for qualifying employees. Under the Schemes, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rs. 3.37 crores (March 31, 3019: Rs. 2.73
crores) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in

the rules of the schemes

b) Defined Benefit plans - gratuity (unfunded)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded). Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure @

15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months

These plans typically expose the Company to acturial risks such as interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk

Interest rate risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the planned liabilities

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the morality of planned participants both during and after

the employment An increase in the life expentncy of the planned participants will increase the planned liabilities.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of planned participants. As such an increase in salary of

the planned participants will increase the planned liabilities.

No other post retirement benefits are provided to the employees

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and the funded status and amounts

Plan assets at the year end, at fair value

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Present value of benefit obligation at year ended (5.14) (3.78)
Plan assets at the year ended, at fair value - -
Net (liability) recognized in the balance sheet (5.14) (3.78)
Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost)

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Current Service Cost 0.82 064
Net Interest Cost 029 022

1.11 0.86

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 0,54 0.27
Balance sheet

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Defined benefit obligation (5.14) (3.78)
Fair value of plan assets = 5
Plan asset / (liability) (5.14) (3.78)
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Opening defined benefit obligation 3.78 292
Interest cost 029 022
Current service cost 0.82 064
Benefits paid (0.29) 0.27)
Actuarial losses/ (gain) on obligation-experience 0.54 0.27
Closing defined benefit obligation 5.14 3.78
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligation for the Company's plans are shown below:
Gratuity
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Discount rate (in %) 6.76% 7.60%
Salary Escalation (in %) 7.00% 7 00%
Expected rate of return on assets - -
Attrition rate (in %)
Up to 30 Years 40 00% 40.00%
From 31 to 44 years 15.00% 15.00%
Above 44 years 1 00% 1.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields available on Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the

obligations.

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply

and demand in the employment market.

As at As at
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Year | 0.63 053
Year 2 0.55 0.42
Year 3 0.54 0.34
Year 4 0.49 027
Year 5 034 023
Next 5 years 2:59 2.00
Experience Adjustments

. March 31, March 31, | March 31,

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 2018 2017 2016
Defined benefit obligation 5.14 3.78 2.92 2.47 1.96
Plan assets - - - - -
Surplus / (Deficit) (5.14) (3.78) (2.92) (2.47) (1.96)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (loss)/gain 0.21) (0.19) (0.07) 0.02 (0.14)

Experience adjustments on plan assets (loss)/gain

Gratuity Plan

Sensitivity Level
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Impact on defined benefit obligation
March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Assumptions

Discount rate

Future salary increases

0.5% increase
0.5% increase

0.5% decrease
0.5% decrease

0 5% increase
0.5% increase

0.5% decrease
0.5% decrease

Amount Amount
(0.16) 017 0.16 (0.15)
(0.13) 0.14 0.13 (013}

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key
assumptions occurring at the end of the year. Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated
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27. Contingent liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
(i) Contingent Liabilities
(1) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Income tax* 1.24 -
*Income tax demand for AY 2018-19 on account of certain disallowances, against which the Company has filed an appeal. The Company do not
expect any outflow on this account.

(b) On September 11, 2018, the Company received refund of service tax of Rs. 27.84 crore pertaining to period January 1, 2017 to June 30, 2017
which was recognised during the year ended March 31, 2019. The service tax department had filed an appeal against the same at a Commissioner of
Central Tax (Appeals) which got subsequently decided in favour of the Company. The time limit for filing appeal against this order has still not
elapsed as on the date. The Company estimates that there is more likely than not probability that the Company’s position will be sustained at a
higher appellate authority and accordingly no liability has been recorded. The Company do not expect any outflow on this account.

(ii) Capital Commitments

As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 0.72 7.97
provided for (net of capital advances)
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28A. Financial assets and liabilities

The accounting classification of each category of financial instrument, their carrying amounts and their fair values are set out below:

As at March 31, 2020

Financial Assets

Fair value through  Fair value through other

Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value

profit or loss comprehensive income
Loans . - 150 63 150.63 150.63
Cash and cash equivalents - - 6.54 6.54 6.54
Other financial assets including other bank balances - - 117.11 117.11 117.11
Tatal - - 274,28 274.28 274.28

Financial Liabilities

Fair value through  Fair value through other Amortised cost

profit or loss comprehensive income

Total carrying value Total fair value

Borrowings - s 65.92 65.92 65.92
Trade payables . 181.03 181.03 181.03
Lease Liabilities = - 22.76 22.76 22.76
Other financial liabilities 392 - 5.03 8.95 895
Total 3.9 - 274.74 278.60 278.66

As at March 31,2019

Financial Assets

Fair value through  Fair value through other Amortised cost

Total carrying value Total fair value

profit or loss comprehensive income
Loans . |hir 42 140.42 140 42
Cash and cash equivalents - . 20.01 20.01 2001
Otther financial assets meluding other bank balances - - 65.92 65.92 6592
Total - - 226,35 226.35 226,35

Financial Liabilities

Fair value through  Fair value through other Amortised cost

Total carrying value Total fair value

profit or loss comprehensive income
Borrowings - - 132.95 132.95 13295
Trade payables - - 100.75 100.75 100.75
Uther financial habilities 12.94 - 7.64 20.58 20 58
Total 12.94 - 241.34 254.28 254.28
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28B. Fair values

The carrying amount of all financial assets and liabilities (except for those instruments carried at fair value) appearing in the Financial Statements is reasonable approximation of fair values

Carrying value Fair value
As at As at As at As at
Murch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Other Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Derivative Contracts 392 12,94 392 12.94
Total 3.92 12.94 3.92 12,94

Assumption used in estimating the fair values

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

The Company enters into derivative financial mstruments with various counterparties, pringipally financial mstitutions with investment grade credit vatings. cross cimency swaps are valued using viluation
techniques, which employs flie use of market ohservable inputs, The most fiequently appled valuation techmig lude forward pricing smd swap models, using value calentations. The models
incorporate varous inputs mehiding the credit quality of ei parties. foreigs haunge spot and forward rates, yield curves of the respective currencies. eurrensy basis spreads between the respective
currencies, interest rate curves and forward rate curves of the underlying commodity

29. Fair value hierarchy

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation techniques:

Level | - Quated prices (unadjusted) in active markets for wlentical assers or luabihnies

Level 2 - Inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly (i e as prices) or indirectly (i ¢ derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the ussets or habilities thut are not based un obiservable market data (unubservable inputs).

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities. Quantilative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabitities as at March 31,
2020 and March 31, 2019:

Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobservable
inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative Contracts March 31, 2020 3.92 - 392 ]

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities as at March 31,2019:

Fair value measurement using

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobservable
inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level )
Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative Contracts March 31, 2019 12.94 . 12,94 .

There have been no transfers between Level |, Level 2 and Level 3 during (he year
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Catpany’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise birrowings, lease liabilities and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Compiny’s operations and to sUppart its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The
Company also enters into derivative transactions.

Tlhe Company is exposed to market nisk, credit nisk and lguidity risk The Company's senior management eversees the mimagement of these risks  The Company’s financial risk activities are governed
by apprapriate policies and procedures and (hat [ | risks are identified, 1 ed and n I in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objeetives. All derivative activities for sk
managentent purposes are carried ol by senior mmagemnent team that have the appropriate skills, expenence and supervision. It is the Company’s policy thiat no trading in derivatives for speculative
puiposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these tisks, which are summansed below

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk, sucli as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include borrowings and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2020 and as at March 31, 2019

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net delt, the ratio of fixed to Roating interest rates of the debt and derivatives and the proponion of financial instruments in
foreign currencies are all constant and on the basis of hedge designations in place as at March 31, 2020 and as at March 31, 2019

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrving values of gratuity and oilier post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the nun-financial assets and liabilities of
foreign operations

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assuned changes in respective market risks This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as at March 31, 2020
and as at March 31, 2019

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other
variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Financlal year Currency lncreaseiD;co;'::se in basis Effect on profit before tax
INR +50 o
March 31,2020 il 50 0.28
e +50 (0.38)
March 31,2019 INR .50 038

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment.




Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held constant The impact on the Company’s profit before tax is due to

changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.

Financial vear Change in rate Effect on profit before tax
March 31, 2020
5% (0.08)
aBP -5% 008
5% (0.04)
Euro 5% 0.04
5% (0.12)
HF
¢ -5% 0.12
5% (0.13)
D
56 -5% 0.13
5% (1.85
USD
-5% 185
Financial Year Change in rate Effect on profit before tax
March 31. 2019
5% 0.00
GBP
-5% (0.00)
5% {0.05)
Ei
a2 -5% 0.05
5% (0.01)
CHF
-5% 0.01
5% (0.03)
SGD
-5% 003
USD 5% (0.27)
-5% 0.27
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is mainly exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables and other financial assets) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and
other financial instruments.

Trade receivables- Customer credit risk is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The Company’s maximuin exposure 1o credit tisk for the components of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2020 and as at 31st March 2019 is the carrying amounts as illustrated in note 11 except for
derivative financial instruments, The Company's maximum expestre relating to financial derivative instruments is noted in Note 30 and the liquidity table below

Liguidity risk

Tl (ompany: monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafls and bank loans. Approximately 26 % of the Company’s debt will mature in less than one year at 29% based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the Financial Statements. The
Company assessed the concentratiof of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Company has aicgess 10 a sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt maturing within
12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at March 31, 2020 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to S years > § years Total
24.66 1.99 22.16 42.71 - 91.52

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at March 31, 2019 based on contractual undiscounted payments,

On demand Less than 3 months 3 to 12 months 1 to 5 years > § years Total

66.00 10.73 27.50 28.72 8 132,95
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1. Caphtal mansgement

For the purpose of the Company s capilal managamenL. capilal includes issued equity capite! and al) olher equity reserves sitnbutable 1 the eyuity holders The primary objective of the Company s
apeinl s ek bt (e shmmels ddar walie

Tha' Unpary pvoarmges i cupltal smnsturs. wivd mmaign mlpdimenils fo Hight ) iivsgs in sy i and B Fpesients of the liancial covenants To miaintam or sdjus( e capiab
Sttty et Conpijimy otin adoisd s ok idorsd povuingnt be swaildors. i domlel (o sharatadlieht 4 dess new shaten Tl Company monitors capilal using @ gearing ratio. which is acl d<bt
Widbot by 1stnt cauinl il s Bt we amvvnd busbos Tha Compae « prbies i b b the i et i T50q grmaaaiis

| T TR A8 Mareh A1
0 At lgm % 102§
el Debi (A)
agilial Companents
Equily [Note 9 and Noke 10] (3} 168 87 L
Tapktal and debt (A+T)
et wath 100 |43 A At 0%

Al March 31, 2020, the Company had avsitable Rs NIL (March 31. 2019: Rs 12 88 crorc) of undmwn commitied borowing facilities from lerm loan [V & V and Rs 56 01 crore (includes buyer's
credit and cash credit). (March 31 2019: Rs 1462 crores) fram cash credil

In order 10 schieve (his overall objeciive, the Company’s capilal management, smongs! other Ihings, #ims lo asure that it meets financial covenanis aitached 10 the inferesi-bearing loans and
borrowings thal define capia) stnichure requirements. Breaches in mesfing the financial corcnants would permi the bank (0 immediskely callloans and bomomings. There hase boen no breachs i the
Fiinssn usvemnts of any litarest bicaring b aikd bvrisdng s the current year.

S gl wirs made in 1% edjgtives, policics T e fis managing capial during the year ended Merch 31, 2020 and during the year emded March 31, 2019

32, Detalls of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED A<t, 2006

The Companry has certain duss to suppliars regiskred under Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises Developmant Act, 2006 { MSMED Acl) The disclosures pursuani o e aaid MSMED Actareas
follows:

N Anwt Mareh 38, | Awd Slaneh 81,
Pasticulars i 2019
2 i) g s el i ! i speed w5 4z vear cod® FEFR )
[ 1 sk s WISATEL} At sl romiaitning woigaed st voar g 2
e ™ e e AT Act baonond. d duy fhumsre the vae
19 4t B orsd the appstad day duipiig the Yoat .
i 12 At bl o day g the vesr = =
de i 1. 5 winbin SAME T Ast fw ey e 3
e amd gy bl 1q carhs veam s
*Rfox ks 12 el 13
AL urpuraie Soidal Hospos
bk Far the vear ended Vil tha vear ended
v Ny M, Sareh H, 14
{Conlribution to healtheare, education and other community developinent projects 414
Total 14
| Amount required to be spent under Section 135 of the Companies Acl, 2013 W
Amaant sgent during the year on
(i) Construction / acquisition of an assct "
|4ii} On purposes other than (i} above Ll

M

10h ThMl incrmticnnad irjort § suined {BILAL ) Tl evcr it Comation, Mansgamott sl Dewssapmn S gresmiant o TR Ao bty of I 4 ALY b UL, o cnchiig
S ot imiitaii, dhevsho, o slasrss an sisigs (e b disidhi litebos) At (LA S D0t | il gt o rvanss Whasnig sl 0 g perid e 1t e il

GINHIRN Don M v VUM, Dby Irtermmtoomdl Arrpered Limishiad G AL ) bt iy B w0 @ Commgmity Bom dsigning the ity o copamitionn oh Bholiil Aot bhe painicnts of opiifiaal saty Tha

Iwneg fe=n i B gty from couthets arg Tl oo fingher of (g rovamis Wiste amiount sad i ytiaal Wbty & marmiitenn (MM | syt calculiell o dhe mamre st sti o e | s agresmenty

entered by the Company with DIAL

The Company has also cntored inlo cerein cancellable operaling kease agroemants mainly for affice premiscs and warchouscs. The Conipany has also enkered inlo & non-canceltablc agresment tor 8
warchouse which s under construction in respect of which the Company has given inkrest free security deposits of Rs. 11,04 crores (As at March 31, 2019 Rs. 11.04 croees).

i Wil it v ) Aol 908, g e bt adkogtad Tind A 110, Lmses’ s applicel 10 all emes comrmces st omn | Al 019 i e eatifhd syt i mnd T ot
s cxmenfatita b o rctind passnys. on e date ol ininal spplisation (1 Apnl 2019 Acsonhegly, S Compae o vt pared 0 agsanli the wanpmedivg it for vy amlel
Sdarch 3L 2000 Kightoofoumt (HUA ') boncts ol | April, 2015 it fonben peanfonly clussifiod we imraiing Jousen ans paqegrinadd aisd mamsnrid 41 s Wit aqusl ol Dialubeby §wtjpstont b e
related prepayments) The Company has elecied nol lo apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 o short-lerm leases

it et wil corbmins dicty froe otiblots winss MM s sl Food Ssrgheai) et e sanagamon ot e Faat the payriner it st fiutfil s difisninom of Visas paymants (i.c. not fivad orin
ibsaces fiied ayeh ol varalbs peyments linbid Kb o indes) s iy s ot ko b onlided i e loase pfioants for the purpess i ompriting losse finbilty wmslit Il A5 116 and presculed
wepmntcly im th Saslatneersl 1| Pyl wil | s Nccordiesgty, the rnesisee fos of He 528 &8 rores risieg h woead o s Pl ] | oo

Following are the charrees in the carrving valuz of righl of use nssels for the year ended March 31 2020:
Right af use assels

Vlbonin e e chames i the ot saliee of et of s sests for the e madad Mardh 3. 20307
Right of use musets

Halance a3 of April 1, 2019 (on sccount of adoption of Ind AS 116) 2769
Addilions -
Deletions
1
latarce an of March 31, 2010 -E..._"%
The following is the movement in kease lishilities during the vear ended March 31, 2020:
Lesse Liabillly
Asal Aprl ), 2019 2 56
Finance cost sccrued during the year 213
Lease liability written off am
Payment of lease lisbifities (6%)
.[um&ﬂu'.!-i_._ 10
Wilanee oy od Mareh 31 30101 A
In view of the Covid-19 outbreak refmred fo in Noke 25, DIAL on March 30, 2020 decided 1o suspend the kevy and payment of MMG smount for Iwo months effective March 1, 2020 1ilh Apil 10
2020 under the Liconse Agroamenl. sccordingly the Conipany o the lease linbility and wri fease lability of Rs 1 17 Crores

The followlng ks the break-up af ribrend ajsil fen-sigtresi| lease lakilliles as of March 31, 2020
Non - current 1636

LR
1%
Maturity profle of lease Lablllty
The lable below swmmarises e nuturin profile of the Company s lease lishililies tased on contreciual undiscounted prywcnts

Wiltin | Afer oae varbul | More than five

one vear | ot more than fiss. vears Tatal
Vuwt e Maseh 31, 3020 1aa)
otns |satulibes T (RS iie

The Company does not face a signilicant liquidity risk wilh regand o s lease liel

sl curvent xsts are sufficient (o meel he obligations relaled 1o lease habilitics o~ and when ey il duc

For the year Mgrvh 2020
ot ik Ikl ) bt wsh T
Interest on leasc lisbiliry 213
Teron esihangy e 220
Ligmas linbsliy writtum o TN
Tolal simouin sewegiised Uy shstyimee of peoiit ail loss LT
8 et Heemrthioe

Factors tsed ta [dentify (he entlties segment Including the basls of organisation

Operafing segments are reported in & maner consiskont with the inernal reporting provided o the Chicl Operaling Decision Maker (CODM) The CODM is considered to be the Hoard of Direclors
who mekes siricgic decisions and is ibie for allocating asssing I the operaling segments.

The principal sctivity of the company is sale of duty fre¢ products including liquor, confeciioncry., fobscco, perfume and consmefics 1 Teminal 3 {Indir Gandhi Interationat Airpor) in Dlhi -
llence. thore is only one reportable segment. As the Company’s business activilies falls within a single operating segmen! viz. “sake of mded goods™ and is a single geographical scgmenl, the
disslosure requiraments of Ind AS— 108 “Segment Reporting * aré nol spplicable

N single cuslonrer has accounted for more than 10% of the fotsl revenue




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
'(Amount in Rupees erore, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 Disclosures under Accounting Standards (contd.)

mt

Particulars

36 |Related party transactions

36.a |List of related parties and nuture of relutionship with whom transactions
Description of relationship

linve taken place during the year.
Nantes of reluted parties

(i) Entities with {oint control over the reporting entity

Delhi International Airport Limited (DIAL)
GMR Airports Limited
Yalorvin Limited?

* During the year, transactions have taken place with Aer Rianla Intemational cpt (Holding company of Yalorvin Limited)

(ii) Entities in which Companies covered in (i) above exercise contiol o1
significant influence

Detlii Airport Parking Services Private Limited

Celebi Delhi Cargo Management (1) Private Limited
WAISL Ltd (upto June 26. 2019)

Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited
GMR Airport Developers Limited

GMR Sports Private Limited

(iii) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

(iv) Entities in which persons covered above can exercise significant

influence

Mr. R S S L N Bhaskarudu (Director)
Ms, Kameshwari Vissa (Director)
Mr. Pawan Kumar Malhotra (Director)

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation

Mole - The above st of related parties and relationship are us cerlified by the munagement.

36.b |Detnils of related transaetions snd balanees outstanding as st March 31, 2020:
Particulars Entities with joint

Entities in which Key Management Entities in which Total
control over the Companies covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i)
reporting enfity (i) above exercise to (iii) above can
confrol or significant exercise significant
influence influence
Concession Fee (Including lease payment)
- Delhi International Airport Limited 532.65 $32.65
(514.18) (514.18)
Marketing fee
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 16 80 16 80
(1620) (16 200
Airport service charges
- Delhi Intemnational Airport Limited 7.56 7 50
(7.09) (7 09)
Airport entry pass charges
- Delhi International Airport Limited 002 002
(002) (0.02)
Electricity, fuel and water charges
- Delhi International Airport Limited 4.19 4.19
(3.07) (3.07)
Repairs & maintenance charges - others
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 0.39 0.39
(0.36) 10.36)
Rent
= Delhi International Airport Limited 2.46 240
(2.29) (2.29)
Marketing 0.01 001
- Delhi International Airport Limited (0.01) (0.011)
Deputed staff cost
- Delhi International Airport Limited 0.57 0.57
(0.50) (0.50)
Warehouse charges
- Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 044 0.44
(0.40) (0407




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL.2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amaunt in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Entities with joint Entities in which Key Management Entities in which Total
control over the | Companies covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i)
reporting entity (i) above exercise to (iii) above can
control or significant exercise significant
influence influence

Terminal, Storage and Processing (TSP) charges

-Celebi Delhi Cargo Management (1) Private Limited 0.66 0 66
(1.10) (1 10y
Computer Repair and Maintenance
-WAISL Ltd 0.22 022
(0 84) (084
Project Cost
- GMR Airport Developers Limited 1.23 123
(2.64) ()
Staff welfare
Travel Food Services (Delhi Tenminal 3) Private Limited 0.00 000
() -1

Contribution towards corporate social responsibility

GMR Varalakshmi Foundation 2,58 258
(2.1t (2.1

Professionul Fees
« GMR Aimorts Limited 8.85 885
) ()
- Aer Rianta Intemnational cpt 4.43 443

(-) (&




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : US2599D1.2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

"(Amount in Rupees crore, unless atherwise stated)

Entities in which

Particulars Entities with joint Entities in which Key Management Total —I
control over the | Companies covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i}
reporting entity (i) above exercise to (iii) above can
control or significant exercise significant
influence influence
Final dividend paid for the FY 2018-19
= Delhi Intemnational Airport Limited 7.98 7.98
(9 98) {9.98)
« GMR Airports Limited 273 2.73
(3.41) (3.41)
- Yalorvin Limited 529 5.29
(6.61) 661)
Interim dividend paid
- Delhi International Airport Limited 3593 3593
(25.9%) (25.95)
- Yalorvin Limited 23.81 23.81
(17.20) (17211
= GMR Airmports Limited 12.26] 12.26
18.86) (8.80)
Reimbursement paid on expenses incurred on our behalf
- Yalorvin Limited 077 0.97
i-1 =)
- GMR Airports Limited .07 bz
(101.06) 006)
Reimbursement received of expenses incurred on their behalf
+ Yalorvin Limited | 00 1.00
091} (0911)
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 11.22 11.22
(364 (3 64)
- GMR Airports Limited 0.19 0.19
(1.20) (1204
Directors sitting fees
«R S S L N Bhaskarudu 0.06 0.06
(0 06y (0.06)
- Kameshwari Vissa 0,04 0:04
(0.05) (0.05)
- Pawan Kumar Malhotra 0.05 00s
PR (0,06 )




Dethi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes fo Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

‘[ Amount in R erore, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

Entities with joint Entities in which Key Management Entities in which Total
control over the | Companies covered in | Personnel (KMP) | persons covered in (i)
reporting entity (i) above exercise to (iii) above can
control or significant exercise significant
influence influence
Security deposit refunded
. Delhi International Airport Limited - -
(1.511 (1511
Balances outstanding at at March 31, 2020 (As at March 31, 2019)
Payables
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 17.44 1744
(19 68) (19.68)
- Yalorvin Limited 097 0.97
(00.201) (0.20)
- Aer Rianta International cpt 3.30| 3.36
(=) )
- GMR Sports Private Limited 0.00 000
(0.00y (0.00)
-WAISL Ltd - -
(0.06) (0.06)
= GMR Airport Developers Limited - -
(0.22) (0.221
-Travel Food Services (Delhi Terminal 3) Private Limited 0.00 0,00
9 )
-GMR Airports Limited B.8S 8.85
(0,00} (0 00)
Receivables
- Celebi Delhi Cargo Management (1) Private Limited 0.06 0.06
{0 04) (0.04)
- Yalorvin Limited 031 031
(0 18) (0 18)
« Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 36.64 36 64
(0 16} (0.16)
- Delhi Airport Parking Services Private Limited 001 001
(8] ()
Security deposits given
- Delhi Intemational Airport Limited 143,10 143 10
(128.68) (128 68)
- Delhi Airport Parking, Services Private Limited 0.14 014
(0.14) (0.14)
it 0.00 implies value less than Rs, 1,000,010,
Note
1. The sales/ provision of services to and purchase/provision of services from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's legnth tr ions O ding bal as
at the year are ed and i free and settl occurs in cash

2. No amount has been written off/provided for or written back in respect of amount receivable from or payable to the related parties.




Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited (CIN : U52599DL2009PTC191963)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
'(Amount in Rupees crore, unless otherwise stated)

37. Transfer Pricing
The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information end d as required by the fer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act,
1961. Since the law reguires existence of such information and d tiom to be ¢ i in nature, the Company is in the process of updating the I ion for i s

entered into with the holding company and other associated enterprises during the financinl vear and expects such records to be in existence latest by the due date a5 required under that law. The
t is of the opinion that its tr are at arm’s length so that the aforeseid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax

expense and that of provision for taxation.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Delhi Duty Free Services Private Limited
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